SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT THIRTY-NINE

Amherst, Mont Vernon, and Souhegan Cooperative School Districts

ADAM A. STEEL CHRISTINE M. LANDWEHRLE Superintendent of Schools Assistant Superintendent MARGARET A. BEAUCHAMP Director of Student Services MICHELE CROTEAU Business Administrator



Souhegan Cooperative School Board Meeting

Thursday, Dec 17th, 2020 – 6:00 PM

Due to current COVID-19 precautions, board meetings will be conducted via webinar.

Please click the link below to register for this webinar:

https://sau39.zoom.us/.../register/WN czp636MBQ4eU8PQ30Mx9tA

Agenda Item	Time	Desired Action	Backup Materials	
Call to Order	6:00 PM	Chair of the Souhegan Cooperative School Board, Mr. Pim Grondstra, to call the meeting to order	None	
Public Input I of II	6:05 PM			
Consent Agenda 6:10 PM		 1.11 19 2020 Draft Minutes 2.11 30 2020 Draft Minutes 3. SCSD Nov. Facilities Update 4. Policy DID- from 11 30 2020 SCSB meeting 5. FY' 21 Cap. Reserve Trust Funds 	11 19 2020 Draft Minutes 11 30 2020 Draft Minutes Nov. Facilities Update Policy DID- Fixed Assets Report of Fund Balance	
		6. Resignation	Not Included in the Packet	
Program of Study Timeline	6:15 PM	SHS Administration to present the Program of Study Timeline	POS Timeline 2020-2021	
Remote Learning Update	6:25 PM	SHS Administration to provide the Board with an update on Remote Learning	None	
FY' 22 Budget and Warrant Article Finalization	6:35 PM	Board to finalize the FY'22 Budget and Warrant Articles	None	
Public Hearing Preparation	7:15 PM	Board to prepare for the Public Hearing	None	
Public Input II of II	7:50 PM			
Non- Public Session	7:55 PM	RSA 91 A:3 II ()		
Meeting Adjourned	8:00 PM			

Consent Agenda Item #1

1	Souhegan Cooperative School Board					
2	Thursday, November 19th, 2020					
3	Meeting Minutes- Not Approved					
4	Attendees:					
5 6	Administrative Team: Adam Steel- Superintendent of Schools and Meg Beauchamp- Director of Student Services,					
7 8	Souhegan Cooperative School Board: Chair- Pim Grondstra, Vice Chair- Amy Facey, Secretary- Stephanie Grund, Steve Coughlan, George Torres, John Glover and Laura Taylor.					
9	Board Minutes: Danae A. Marotta					
10	Public: Catie Dodge, Amherst NH.					
11	I. Souhegan Cooperative Vice-Chair Opening					
12 13 14	Today, we will be conducting a school board meeting of the Souhegan Cooperative School Board.					
15 16 17	Before we get started, I'll read through a checklist to ensure that the meeting that we are holding is in compliance with the Right-to-Know Law.					
18 19 20 21 22 23 24	As Vice- chairperson of the Souhegan Coop. Board, I find that due to the state of emergency declared by the Governor as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, and in accordance with the Governor's Emergency Order Number #12, pursuant to Executive Order 2020-04 and its extensions, this public body is authorized to meet electronically. Please note that there is no physical location to observe and listen contemporaneously to this meeting which was authorized pursuant to the Governor's Emergency Order.					
25 26	In accordance with the Emergency Order, I am confirming that:					
20 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34	1. We are providing public access to the meeting by telephone, with additional access possible by video and other electronic means. We are utilizing Zoom for this electronic meeting. All members of the committee and selected legislative staff have the ability to communicate contemporaneously in this meeting through this platform. And the public has access to contemporaneously watch and or listen to the meeting on Zoom and via phone by following the directions and links provided on our website: www.sau39.org .					
35 36 37 38 39	 We have provided public notice of the necessary information for accessing the meeting. We are providing a mechanism for the public to alert the public body during the meeting if there are problems with access. If anyone has a problem, please email <u>awallace@sau39.org</u>. 					
40						

5. Please note that all votes taken during this meeting shall be done by roll call vote.

4.

rescheduled.

41

42 43

44 45

46

47

48 49

50

51 52

53

54

55

56

57

58 59

60

61 62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

2

6. Finally, let's start the meeting by taking a roll call attendance. When each member states their presence please also state where they are and if anyone else is in the room with you during this meeting, which is required and the Right-to-Know Law. Roll Call: Coughlan- Home and alone, Torres- Home and alone, Facey- Home and alone, Taylor-Home and alone, Grund- Home and along, and Glover- Home and alone. II. Call to Order Souhegan Cooperative School Board Vice- Chair, Ms. Amy Facey called the meeting to order at 5:37PM. Mr. Grondstra noted that he was home and alone. III. Consent Agenda Director of Student Services, Ms. Meg Beauchamp, explained the Assistant Superintendent Resolution. Mr. Coughlan motioned to approve the transition of the Curriculum Coordinator Position to be a Assistant Superintendent Position in the SAU #39 Budget. Ms. Facey seconded the motion. Mr. Grondstra asked for discussion. Mr. Glover inquired about the reasoning behind this. Ms. Beauchamp explained that this is to allow all of the districts to vote individually on this position. Superintendent, Mr. Adam Steel should be joining them shortly. Mr. Torres questioned if the SCSB voted it down would the cost be only allocated to the other three districts. Ms. Facey added that there is someone asking about Public Comment time. Ms. Grund noted that she is on the SAU Budget Committee. There were a lot of questions about the purpose of this position. They are inundating one Assistant Superintendent with all of the Curriculum questions in the SAU. There was one support position and unfortunately, that person left. They would like to see better transition between the Middle and High School. They will not be filling the open Dean of Faculty position. She is in support of this position. Ms. Beauchamp recapped the question from Mr. Torres.

- ⁷⁶ Superintendent, Mr. Adam Steel, replied that it is a State Statute. If more than half of the districts
- in the SAU representing at least 50% of the students in the SAU vote to approve it then it gets
- approved. Souhegan is roughly 35 or 39% percent of the students, so if Amherst and Mont
- 79 Vernon approved it, which they just did, and Souhegan did not they would still, if passed by the
- 80 SAU Board, it would still go into effect and Souhegan would still have pay their apportionment
- 81 for that position.
- 82 Mr. Torres thanked Mr. Steel for the explanation.
- 83 Mr. Grondstra gave his support. He added that having someone to focus on that transition will be 84 extremely helpful.
- 85 Ms. Taylor inquired if they can have the public speak before they vote.
- 86 Ms. Facey added that she appreciated Ms. Grund's analysis. It helps her make an informed
- decision. She believes that having someone focused on Curriculum for the high school is great.
- 88 Having that position with the right person will be invaluable.
- 89 Mr. Glover asked who was this recommended by.
- 90 Mr. Steel replied, legal counsel.
- 91 Mr. Glover inquired if this is reallocating an existing position to a new position.
- 92 Mr. Steel replied, yes.
- 93 Mr. Glover questioned if the reasoning from the position from Curriculum Coordinator to an
- 94 Assistant Superintendent is for authority.
- Mr. Steel replied, yes, and for experience. They have tried to hire for this position for some timeand were not successful.
- 97 Mr. Glover asked if he had someone in mind.
- 98 Mr. Steel replied that he will post this as soon as the SAU Board approves it as they need the
- help. He is not aware of anyone internally although someone might be interested.
- 100 Mr. Glover thanked Mr. Steel for answering his questions.
- 101 Ms. Taylor also thanked Ms. Grund for her analysis. She wanted to confirm that SHS Principal,
- 102 Mr. Mike Berry, supported this position.
- 103 Mr. Grondstra replied, yes, he does support this position.
- 104 The Board thanked Superintendent Steel.
- 105 IV. Public Comment
- 106 Ms. Catie Dodge, Amherst NH resident and SHS parent commented that she was in a meeting
- 107 with a group of parents that did not understand the Empower software. She added that the
- teachers are using three different platforms and Google Classroom is user friendly and free. She

- 109 does not know why they are paying for Empower when it is failing the students and parents. it
- 110 would be a lot simpler if they did not use Empower and suggested that they keep it simpler.
- Mr. Grondstra called for a vote: Torres- Yes, Grondstra- Yes, Coughlan- Yes, Grund- Yes,
 Taylor- Yes, Facey- Yes, and Glover- Yes. Motion passed.
- 113 V. Meeting Adjourned
- 114 Mr. Glover motioned to adjourn the meeting at 6:01PM. Ms. Facey seconded the motion.
- 115 No Roll call was needed.

1	Souhegan Cooperative School Board
2	Monday, November 30 th , 2020
3	Meeting Minutes- Not Approved
4	Attendees via Zoom:
5 6 7	Administrative Team: Adam Steel- Superintendent of Schools, Christine Landwehrle- Assistant Superintendent, Michele Croteau- SAU #39 Business Administrator, Meg Beauchamp- Director of Student Services, Mike Berry- Principal of SHS, Roger Preston- Director of Facilities,
8 9	Souhegan Cooperative School Board: Chair- Pim Grondstra, Vice Chair- Amy Facey, Secretary- Stephanie Grund, Steve Coughlan, George Torres, John Glover and Laura Taylor.
10	Souhegan Advisory Finance Committee- Joel Gordon- SAFC Chair
11	Board Minutes: Danae A. Marotta
12	Public: Amherst and Mont Vernon Community Members
13	I. Souhegan Cooperative Chair Opening
14 15	Chairman of the Souhegan Cooperative School Board, Mr. Pim Grondstra, called the meeting to order at 6:01PM.
16 17 18	Today, we will be conducting a school board meeting of the Souhegan Cooperative School Board.
19 20 21	Before we get started, I'll read through a checklist to ensure that the meeting that we are holding is in compliance with the Right-to-Know Law.
22 23 24 25 26 27 28	As Chairperson of the Souhegan Coop. Board, I find that due to the state of emergency declared by the Governor as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, and in accordance with the Governor's Emergency Order Number #12, pursuant to Executive Order 2020-04 and its extensions, this public body is authorized to meet electronically. Please note that there is no physical location to observe and listen contemporaneously to this meeting which was authorized pursuant to the Governor's Emergency Order.
28 29 30	In accordance with the Emergency Order, I am confirming that:
31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38	 We are providing public access to the meeting by telephone, with additional access possible by video and other electronic means. We are utilizing Zoom for this electronic meeting. All members of the committee and selected legislative staff have the ability to communicate contemporaneously in this meeting through this platform. And the public has access to contemporaneously watch and or listen to the meeting on Zoom and via phone by following the directions and links provided on our website: <u>www.sau39.org</u>. We have provided public notice of the necessary information for accessing the meeting.
39	

40 41 42	3.	We are providing a mechanism for the public to alert the public body during the meeting if there are problems with access. If anyone has a problem, please email <u>awallace@sau39.org</u> .					
43 44 45 46	4.	In the event the public is unable to access the meeting will be adjourned and rescheduled.					
40 47 48	5.	Please note that all votes taken during this meeting shall be done by roll call vote.					
49 50 51 52	6.	Finally, let's start the meeting by taking a roll call attendance. When each member states their presence please also state where they are and if anyone else is in the room with you during this meeting, which is required under the Right-to-Know Law.					
52 53 54 55 56		all: Coughlan- Home and alone, Torres- Home and alone, Facey- Home and alone, Taylor- and alone, Grund- Home and alone, Glover- Home and alone and Grondstra- Home and					
57 58	II.	Public Input I of II					
59 60	No Pul	olic Comment					
61 62	III.	Consent Agenda					
63 64	Ms. Gi	rund requested to pull #8 Policy Packet.					
65 66 67	Mr. Glover asked to pull the 1. 10 26 2020 Draft Minutes because he was not appointed to the Board at that time.						
68 69	Ms. Ta	aylor requested to pull #1,#2, #3 and #8.					
70 71	Mr. To	prres noted that he was not listed as in attendance.					
72 73 74	Superi final m	ntendent, Mr. Adam Steel, suggested that they through each item one by one and then do a notion.					
75 76	Mr. Gr	rondstra went to #1. 10 26 2020 Draft Minutes.					
77 78	Mr. Gl	over added that he was not at that meeting and would like to abstain.					
79 80 81	with of	ylor changed line 194. "Ms. Taylor remarked that they are a part of a district that joins ther districts to create their SAU. Each individual district should be part of the selection of n important position as the Principal".					
82 83 84	Mr. To	prres noted that he was left off of line 9 and 448 as in attendance.					

Ms. Taylor added that she is concerned with the school calendar. Her concerns are with school starting Sept 7th and with the later start time, she does not see the need for Late Start Days. She recommended having Early Releases or Professional development days off. Mr. Grondstra asked for other concerns with the Calendar. There were no other concerns. Ms. Taylor noted that from the test results is appears that the 10th grade and the 9th grade did not do very well. She asked for more information from Assistant Superintendent, Ms. Christine Landwehrle. Mr. Glover added that he appreciated Ms. Taylor bringing that up. Ms. Landwehrle explained the growth with RIT points at the high school. She noted that these scores are very strong given the school disruption from last fall to this fall. All grade levels met their target growth except the 9th grade Math. That is reflective of 8th grade instruction and the teachers are aware. In 10th grade Math, they have surpassed their target growth. You can see that they grew 4 RIT points. She was excited about these results with the exception of the 9th grade. Mr. Glover noted that the 9th grade is reflective of the 8th grade instruction. He is presuming that the 8th grade teachers are aware as well. It is as important to keep the growth going from school to school. Ms. Landwehrle replied, yes. Ms. Grund added that it also supports the need for the Assistant Superintendent position. Mr. Grondstra added there is better understanding. He then went to #8 Policy Packet. Ms. Grund commented that she is still not in favor of the GCEB- Administrative Staff Recruiting. She would like to see more of the School Board and community involved in the hiring process. She is willing to pull that policy out so she can vote on the other ones. Mr. Steel mentioned that they did discuss at the SAU level and perhaps it should be voted on separately from the Consent Agenda. Chairman Grondstra pulled policy GCEB. Ms. Taylor mentioned that she would also like to pull GBGA- Staff Health and IKA- Grading and Reporting. Mr. Grondstra added that they can vote on those separately. They have pulled GCEB-Administrative Staff Recruiting, GBGA- Staff Health and IKA- Grading and Reporting.

130	Ms. Grund motioned to approve the Consent Agenda as amended, items 1.10 26 2020 Draft
131	Minutes, 2.FY' 22 School Calendar 3. NWEA MAP Assessment- Fall 2020, 4.
132	<u>Unanticipated Revenue \$2,500, 5. FY' 21 Cap Reserve Funds SCSB, 6. Sept. 2020</u>
133	Treasurer's Report, 7. October 2020 Treasurer's Report, 8. Policies from SCSB Meeting 10
134	26 2020. Mr. Coughlan seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous, motion passed.
135	
136	Roll Call: Coughlan- Yes, Torres- Yes, Facey- Yes, Taylor- Yes, Grund- Yes, Glover- Yes
L37	and Grondstra- Yes.
138	
139	Mr. Grondstra went to policy GCEB.
L40	
.41	Ms. Grund commented that she would like to see more wording that the Superintendent is going
.42	to include the School Board in the hiring process for administration at the high school. The way
.43	that it is worded now, it does not say anything that the Board is included.
44	
45	Mr. Coughlan mentioned that this policy has already been through the Policy Committee. They
46	should not send it back to the Policy Committee. They should take a vote and if it fails then
47	appoint a subcommittee within this Board to create new language. Other districts have voted and
48	are pleased with it as is.
49	
50	Mr. Grondstra asked for guidance from Superintendent Steel.
51	
52	Mr. Steel replied that each of the three policies are up for approval.
53	
54	Mr. Coughlan motioned to approve adopting the new GCEB as written in the packet. Mr.
55	Torres seconded the motion.
56	Mr. Glover asked for discussion.
57 58	WI. Glover asked for discussion.
59 59	Mr. Grondstra replied, yes, there is time for discussion.
50	wir. Grondsuz replied, yes, there is time for discussion.
50 51	He commented that this is an optional policy. He added that time is of the essence with this. The
52	school board is not at the front end of the loop in the process. The Board is put in an untenable
53	position. It is not a lot to ask for the Superintendent to include the Board in hiring administrative
3 4	leadership. He is not pleased with the new policy as written.
5	readership. The is not pleased with the new poney as written.
6 6	Mr. Grondstra asked Mr. Glover what he would want.
57 57	MI. Ofondsula asked MI. Ofover what he would want.
58 58	Mr. Glover commented that maybe this is an exception to the other districts, or maybe the other
9	districts can adopt the SCSD revision. Just because they have adopted that one does not mean
,5 0	that they cannot start the process of adopting their version. He will be happy to help in that
0 '1	process.
'2	
73	Mr. Grondstra asked for other comments.
4	
75	There were no comments.

176	
177	Mr. Grondstra called for a roll call vote: Glover-No, Grund-No, Grondstra- Yes,
178	Coughlan- Yes, Taylor- No, Torres- Yes, Facey- Yes, motion passed. (4-3)
179	
180	Ms. Taylor commented on GBGA- Staff Health, he does not like the mental health being listed in
181	the choice of the Superintendent. The law says medical evaluation. Second, "inimical" is
182	ambiguous word. Lastly, it does not have any standard before that is required.
183	amorgaous word. Easily, it does not nave any sumaria berore and is required.
184	Mr. Coughlan moved to adopt GBGA- Staff Health, as presented. Mr. Grondstra seconded
185	the motion.
186	
187	Mr. Glover mentioned that it seems like they are putting the Superintendent in an impossible
188	situation. It should be a medical professional to make that decision. He does not believe that it is
189	in the purview of the Superintendent.
190	in the purview of the Supermicindent.
191	Mr. Coughlan added that they are not empowering anyone in the administration to make that
191	decision. The Principal will then notify the Superintendent and ask for a medical evaluation.
192	decision. The Efficiency will then notify the Superintendent and ask for a medical evaluation.
195 194	Ms. Taylor commented that she does not believe that the Superintendent has the qualifications to
194 195	distinguish between physical and mental.
	distinguish between physical and mental.
196	Mr. Clover questioned the policy language "The Superinter dent may request a medical
197	Mr. Glover questioned the policy language "The Superintendent may request a medical
198	examination for any employee if at any time he/she has reason to believe that the employee's
199	physical or mental health may be inimical to the welfare of pupils or other employees" It seems
200	that a record would need to be put forth. That is for the protection of the Superintendent and
201	employees.
202	Mr. Consider collection line line to Clean No. Consider No.
203	Mr. Grondstra called for a roll call vote: Glover-No, Grund-No, Grondstra-Yes,
204	Coughlan- Yes, Taylor- No, Torres- Yes, Facey- Yes, motion passed. (4-3)
205	Ma Cara later most to Deliver WA. Cardina and Departing
206	Mr. Grondstra went to Policy IKA- Grading and Reporting.
207	M. Coultranting 14, and D. Kar WA. Carting and Departing a survey of M.
208	Mr. Coughlan motioned to approve Policy IKA- Grading and Reporting, as presented. Ms.
209	Grund seconded the motion.
210	
211	Mr. Grondstra called for a roll call vote: Glover-Yes, Grund-Yes, Grondstra-Yes,
212	Coughlan- Yes, Taylor- No, Torres- Yes, Facey- Yes, motion passed. (6-1)
213	
214	Ms. Taylor commented that she is voting no, because she does not feel that it adequately moves
215	students forward.
216	
217	IV. Policy DID- Fixed Assets
218	
219	Mr. Grondstra asked if there were any concerns.
220	

221 222 223	Mr. Torres inquired about the \$10k purchase price for something in bulk, such as desks and laptops.
224 225 226 227 228	Ms. Michele Croteau, SAU #39 Business Administrator, replied that they will look at the situation that leads to that order. Traditionally, if the items are exceeding their useful life of a year, multiple useful life, and exceed the threshold for capitalization and were purchased together then they would be capitalized.
229 230	Mr. Torres inquired if they had an emergency purchase of a couple of laptops.
231 232	Mr. Glover added that there is a difference between the Capital Asset and Durable Goods.
233 234 235	Ms. Croteau mentioned that capitalization becomes relevant when they get audited. The policy is a guide and judgement calls are needed.
236 237	Mr. Coughlan commented that this is related to GASB. They do not depreciate anything.
238 239	Mr. Grondstra suggested that it gets forwarded for the next meeting as a second reading.
240 241	V. Joint Facilities Advisory Committee
242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249 250 251 252 253	Ms. Facey, Chair of the Joint Facilities Advisory Committee, commented that as you know the JFAC building projects of a new Pre-K-5, and AMS renovation have been approved by the ASB. They are planning on a bond for the March ballot. Tonight, the JFAC will be presenting priority projects. In the interest of the timeframe, a subcommittee of JFAC has worked to refine the scope and cost of the priorities. Ms. Victoria Parisi was Chair of this subcommittee. Please note that this does not take into account the larger 2.0 Project. The JFAC believes that it should be considered for funding at a later date. The possibility of making annual deposits to a reserve fund to level the tax rate and reduce the overall debt required to fund the larger Souhegan 2.0 project has also been discussed. They can spend more time on this when the Board is ready.
254 255 256	Manchester NH, is also on the call. As a subcommittee they have identified 4 Priorities, 1. HVAC Systems, 2. Secure Main
257 258 259 260	Entrance, 3. Science Labs, and 4. Locker Rooms. After working with Superintendent Steel and Director of Facilities, Mr. Roger Preston, the HVAC will be covered under their Operating Budget and other financial mechanisms. They have removed that from their scope of work.
261 262 263 264 265	Their first suggestion is to secure the Main Entrance. Community Council worked on a safety analysis that suggests securing the campus, particularly at the main entrance. Varying levels of design are available to make this happen, including a simpler second door all the way up through redesigning the use of space near the entrance.

266 Next, the Science Labs in the Annex lack adequate space. The Administration and SCSB has identified the science labs as a place of needed improvement to deliver curriculum at a higher 267 standard. 268 269 270 Last, the girls' and boys' locker rooms are in need of repair and renovation. 271 272 Ms. Parisi reviewed the three options of redoing the Main Entrance and the different options 1. Main Entrance Renovation with Complete Admin Suite and Special Ed changes- \$716,000, 2. 273 Main Entrance Renovation with Complete Admin Suite- \$400k, and 3. Main Entrance with 274 Vestibule and minimal Admin Changes.- \$250k. As a subcommittee, they have spoken with 275 276 Principal Berry and they support option number 3. 277 She showed the Board the Science Lab configuration, 6 labs, and the space that they have been 278 discussing. They can change around some walls and create three larger rooms. The Science Labs 279 in the Main Building were mentioned in the Souhegan 2.0 project. They will give Principal Berry 280 more time to discuss with the Science department what is needed in the Main Building. 281 282 Ms. Parisi discussed the 3 Locker Room renovation options. 1. Both Floors including Team 283 Rooms- \$1,115,000. 2. Lower Floor only, no team rooms- \$750k and 3. Replace broken lockers-284 285 \$75k. 286 Additional information regarding the SAU 39 Strategic Vision for Souhegan High School should 287 continue to steer future projects. Other parts of Souhegan 2.0 are worth looking into after the list 288 of priorities has been completed. 289 290 291 Ultimately, the SCSB Board will need to determine the scope, timing, and funding method for all projects. They suggest waiting to fund these improvements until they can do so without 292 additional taxpayer impact or after ASD has advanced their facilities project. 293 294 295 Their suggestion would be to do the following: Main Entrance: \$250,000 296 Locker Rooms: \$75,000 297 298 Science Labs in Annex: \$425,000- fund one then reassess future lab renovation. 299 300 Mr. Grondstra asked for questions or comments. 301 302 Mr. Glover noted that they did wonderful work it is very helpful. He added that it would be helpful to see how it connects to the Strategic Vision. 303 304 305 Ms. Parisi added that Community Council has been working with Administration to create a more secure Main Entrance. Second, Superintendent Steel has already noted in previous 306 307 meetings that the Science Labs are a priority. Last, the Locker Rooms are in great disrepair. 308 Mr. Coughlan added that he has a higher security priority with securing the passage from the 309 310 Main Building and the Annex. He suggested having a nicely landscaped wall to secure the passage and closing a major gap. He is wondering if that thought occurred to JFAC. 311

312 313	Ms. Parisi added that it apart of the larger scope and a conversation for the Board.
314 315 316 317	Mr. Whitehead replied that they included that price was about \$1M which includes prep. If they were just to look at that Courtyard, it is about \$600k in construction. That is if he extracts it out of the original Souhegan 2.0.
318 319	Ms. Grund commented that it was not an easy solution to that, and it needs to remain open due to the fire department. It is a bigger problem, and which would be more expensive.
320 321 322	Ms. Ludt mentioned that she was on the Annex Building Committee a long time ago. They had discussed many options but still need fire access.
323 324 325	Mr. Coughlan remarked that he is sure that if they had the discussion with the Fire Department they can come to a compromise.
326 327 328 329 330	Mr. Whitehead reminded the Board that the Souhegan 2.0 project includes a Courtyard with a Fire Department gate on both sides that would meet the needs of the Fire Department. It has been done on other schools and will need local Fire Department and State Fire Commissioner approval.
331 332 333	Ms. Taylor inquired if they were going to add it to the ballot and what do they have to work with.
333 335	Mr. Grondstra replied that they will discuss that when they talk about the budget.
336 337	Ms. Parisi noted that the purpose of the JFAC was so that they can keep the tax rate level. Some creative options might be considered without putting everything on the ballot.
338 339 340	The Board thanked Ms. Parisi and the Joint Facilities Advisory Committee.
341 342	VI. Budget Discussion
343 344 345 346	Mr. Steel noted that the Souhegan Advisory Finance Committee here tonight. The Board will need to finalize their budget and warrant articles at their December 21 st meeting for the January 2021 Public Hearing.
347 348 349 350	Mr. Joel Gordon, Chair of the SAFC, thanked his fellow committee members. They have 7 different individual reports and have worked well with the Board. He thanked Ms. Croteau for helping them set up the process as well as other office staff from Superintendent Steel's office staff.
351 352 353 354 355	He mentioned that the 2021 Budget is \$18,776,509 with 4.1% increase year over year. Adj Proposed 2022 - \$19,550,692. Additionally, the 3-year average actual is \$17,393,513 and 11.4% increase over 3-year average.

- One consistent theme they have found as a committee, is that there needs to be a better
 articulation of the strategic direction that the school is heading in. It is there, but it is not as clear
- and direct as it could be.
- 359
- Second, they believe that they are missing a multi-year budget. They can evaluate the prioryear's priorities. A comprehensive set of metrics should be developed and applied over time to
- 362 be able to focus on and manage services provided.
- 363
- Last, the SAFC is concerned that without the master schedule in place as part of budgeting, the need for teaching staff is not transparent and fully supportable.
- 366

The AFC process, supported by the SAU, the SHS Board, and the Administration, improved this year. We acknowledge and recognize the active participation by members of the SCSB during this process. Having a SCSB member, Ms. Stephanie Grund, as an ex-officio member of the SAEC was an anormous help in better understanding the direct of the board on a number of

- SAFC was an enormous help in better understanding the direct of the board on a number ofissues.
- 372

373 In response to the significant increase in NH Retirement obligations, it should be better

understood the potential future impact over time as well as steps that would mitigate the growth

in this line item. Additionally, a default budget that is consistent near or equal to the proposed
budget invites backlash from the voters over time. They do not have a final recommendation at

- this time and a meeting scheduled for Dec 7^{th} prior to the SCSB meeting on Dec 21^{st} .
- 378
- 379 Mr. Grondstra thanked all the volunteers that have given their time. He asked for comments or380 questions from the Board.
- 381
- 382 Mr. Coughlan remarked that the NH Retirement obligation is quite high. He inquired if they 383 could offer an alternative retirement plan.
- 384
- 385 Mr. Steel replied that it is under RSA 100 or 100 (a).
- 386

387 Mr. Gordon commented that it is a much bigger problem, if it is not addressed or vocalized it388 will not be resolved.

389

Mr. Steel explained that the way that the NH Retirement is funded is that every employee 390 391 contributes 7 % directly from their paycheck and the school district pays an amount set by the 392 NH Retirement system, this is the amount that Mr. Gordon is referring to. It used to be that the retirement system was funded partially by the State through the State's Budget and mostly by the 393 394 employee. For many years, the State did not contribute as they should have through budgeting and now they have an Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) that is 8 years into being 395 paid off and will take 30 years to be paid off in total to close the gap and to fully fund the 396 397 pension system. 398

- 399 Mr. Gordon recapped Mr. Steel's comment.
- 400

early 90's. 402 403 Ms. Facey requested to have Mr. Gordon's presentation. She asked Mr. Gordon how he would 404 present the default and proposed budget. They would not present an artificial budget just to give 405 the voters a choice, that is not how budgets are developed. 406 407 408 Mr. Gordon replied that they do not have a formal position on this. Part of the issue is how the District considers the compensation policy as a firm contractual obligation year after year. The 409 step increase is considered part of the default budget. There are vacant positions that are 410 411 included. Clearly, a portion of the budget are salaries. They are seeing that in a significant way this year. This is a policy of the school. 412 413 Ms. Facey clarified that it is the default calculation as opposed to the default budget. 414 415 Mr. Glover commented that connecting to the strategic vison of the school is important to 416 417 achieve some goals. Finally, it is understandable not to have final recommendations as they do not have their final decisions as well. 418 419 420 Ms. Grund commented that the SAFC is working hard on the budget. 421 Mr. Coughlan mentioned that the Board has the right to make changes to the salary policy. If the 422 Board breaks that faith with the PPC process that has been in place for 25 years, they will soon 423 have a unionized building. A unilateral move by the Board to change compensation is perfectly 424 legal, and perfectly wrong. 425 426 Mr. Grondstra added that they have a budget workshop on Dec 7th. He then recapped the lowest 427 option for the main entrance is \$250k, locker rooms for \$75k and Annex Lab renovation (one) 428 for \$425k. 429 430 Ms. Grund added that she was on the Souhegan 2.0 subcommittee. She added that the science 431 labs should go on the Curriculum, Lockers should be a Maintenance item and Main Entrance 432 433 should be on a separate project. 434 Ms. Taylor inquired if they have to take the choices of the JFAC and can they upgrade and 435 downgrade certain things. 436 437 Mr. Grondstra replied that it is the Board's decision. 438 439 440 Ms. Taylor questioned how are they going to renovate one of the science rooms when they are proposing taking more rooms. 441 442 443 Ms. Grund replied that they are concerned with the ASD adding a potentially large bond to ballot. She cautioned with they want to make sure they are supporting the right things. 444 445 Ms. Taylor asked if they have a projected UFB. 446

Mr. Steel clarified that it is was the State Legislature that made those changes in the late 80s or

Main Entrance and Lockers can be pulled from the Capital Reserve Fund. For the Science Labs, the Board can either place them on the ballot as a separate warrant article or in the proposed budget. Either is permissible and allowable. The advantage of it being separate from the budget is that taxpayers can make a choice and not impact the budget. With regard to the security upgrades, the Board could use funds from the Capital Reserve Fund tomorrow or today and they can move forward on that project. He recommends it being on the ballot for approval. He does not suggest using the UFB (Unreserved Fund Balance) without voter approval. It is a better move to put it on the ballot for voter approval. With the lockers, he believes that they either add a separate warrant article or do them with the UFB, if available. The lockers are clearly broken and fixing them is reasonable. Mr. Grondstra thanked Mr. Steel for that information. Mr. Glover mentioned that the labs in the Operating Budget make sense under Curriculum. He then referenced the "No Means No Law" in NH. He urged the Board to use caution with the UFB. He asked if there was grant money available for security upgrades. Mr. Steel replied he is not sure; however, it will probably not be enough to cover a major project. Mr. Coughlan noted that the Expendable Trust for Souhegan is for Maintenance and Capital Improvements although he does not want to use it. Ms. Facey inquired about the amount of funds that are in the Expendable Trust Fund. Ms. Croteau replied that it is over \$250k. Ms. Facey added that she has a hard time spending funds that should be returned to the taxpayer. Budgets should be prepared with great care and if there are funds left over then they should be deliberating extensively. She would like to consider using the ETF for the lockers because they are not part of the plan that Mr. Preston will be creating for capital improvements. Ms. Taylor inquired about the recommended cost of the Main Entrance. Mr. Grondstra replied, \$250k. Ms. Taylor asked if it can come from the UFB.

Ms. Croteau responded that she does not have that at this time. They have gotten some grant

Mr. Grondstra noted that he would like to have options from the administration for discussion.

Mr. Steel added that he can provide that information now. He noted that the expenses, for the

funding and she will be putting it together.

Mr. Grondstra responded yes, they can put in language if it is available, although there are 493 arguments against it. 494 495 496 Ms. Taylor asked which of the items were not in that category. 497 498 Mr. Steel replied the Science Labs. 499 500 Ms. Grund gave her support for the lockers being replaced from the CRF. She cautioned from raising the budget too much. The voters will say no, and they need to have a hard discussion. She 501 does not want to be held to a timeline because of the agenda. 502 503 Mr. Grondstra agreed, he suggested that the Board table it come back for their budget workshop 504 meeting next week. 505 506 Graduation Plan Discussion 507 VII. 508 509 Principal of SHS, Mr. Mike Berry, to provide an update on the Graduation planning process the possibility of moving it earlier in the high school career and closing the gaps with the Covid 510 issues. He can speak about what exists. He inquired if they are separating out the graduation 511 512 planning process compared to the personalized pathways to graduating. It is two different things in his opinion. 513 514 Ms. Facey thanked him for taking this on. She was looking at how can they help their students 515 make the best decision possible earlier in their high school career to get to whatever goals they 516 want to meet upon graduation. 517 518 Principal Berry replied that SHS starts the planning process in 9th grade. It is also time for the 519 career pathway process. He explained that they use a system called Naviance, where they can 520 look at pathways to graduation, scholarships, etc. At the end of the day, it is up to the school to 521 show the students to the multiple pathways and work with their families to partner with the 522 school. More and more opportunities are making themselves available. There was a law passed, 523 SB 276, relative to career readiness credentials for high school students. 524 525 Mr. Glover mentioned that they should ask the student and their family what are their goals. The 526 second question should be the follow up. He would like to talk more deeply about it. 527 528 529 Ms. Facey commented that they should consider because of Covid some students could not take certain classes. She would like to hear more about his good work in personalizing college 530 531 applications at previous schools. 532 533 Principal Berry replied that there a lot of great things that happen at SHS that are not 534 interconnected. There was a lot of autonomy and they were able to move quickly. They also prioritized items. He will be happy to answer questions. 535 536 537 Mr. Grondstra and Ms. Grund thanked Principal Berry. 538

Ms. Grund suggested getting the parents involved and recommended incoming 9th grade parent 539 presentations. 540 541 Principal Berry agreed that the families are a partnership. There are a lot of great things 542 happening here at SHS. 543 544 Ms. Grund requested that he put some of the accomplishments in the Principal's Report. 545 546 Ms. Taylor requested to see more group events with the students, parents and Guidance 547 Department as different questions come up. 80% of their students currently go to college and 548 549 90% if they were to include the 2-year college curriculum. Helping prepare the 80% is not catering to specific children. 550 551 552 The Board thanked Principal Berry. 553 554 VIII. PSAT/SAT Score Report 555 Superintendent Steel explained that they usually give this presentation at the SAU meeting, but 556 they are including this here on a regular basis at the Board's request. These are the highest test 557 558 scores in recent memory and reflects the great work at Souhegan. 559 Assistant Superintendent, Ms. Christine Landwehrle, added that these are really exciting results. 560 90% of the students are meeting the ELA benchmark at the start of their Senior year. She further 561 explained the bar chart that is included in the agenda packet. In math, the benchmark is higher. 562 They are really excited about these results and there was deep learning while they were remote 563 564 last year. 565 Ms. Grund inquired about the class that took the SAT if their NWEA data was high as well. 566 567 Ms. Landwehrle replied that she wanted to take a look and they will not allow to her to go back 568 and look. She was extremely frustrated. She will be happy to look at the 8th grade data. 569 570 571 Ms. Grund asked about the AP data history. 572 573 Ms. Landwehrle responded that she will be happy to provide a deeper dive with her request. They do work with individual teachers and make those adjustments and make sure that the 574 575 teachers attend the AP Institute especially if their class is changing. They do try to provide that 576 support. 577 Mr. Glover questioned the definition of "benchmark". 578 579 580 Ms. Landwehrle explained that these are criterion referenced results. 581 Mr. Glover gave his support for the results. He asked if there was a way to present the results in a 582 583 different way with the median, the top and bottom 10% percent, etc. He added that there are some sophomores that take the AP exam. 584

Ms. Taylor asked if there was a College Board report that can be sent to the Board. Ms. Landwehrle replied that all of the data comes from the College Board. Ms. Taylor remarked that she would appreciate to see it. Mr. Grondstra agreed. Ms. Facey emphasized that this is incredible data. Principal Berry also noted that this is great work, 1128 average SAT score. Ms. Facey mentioned that these are the results that they have been waiting for. Mr. Grondstra also gave his support. The Board thanked Ms. Landwehrle and Principal Berry. IX. Community Council Rep Ms. Facey remarked that Ms. Delaney Facques had sent a letter to her to read for tonight's meeting. She noted that a proposal was passed that had to do with passing time on the stairwells and it should hopefully be implemented by the end of the year. At the next board meeting, she is planning on having a something to be added to the agenda packet. Mr. Steel commented that they have received an application. The Board can take a motion. Mr. Grondstra gave his support for the applicant. Ms. Taylor motioned to approve Ms. Heather Allain as the Mont Vernon Community Member to Community Council. Mr. Glover seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous, motion passed. Mr. Grondstra called for a roll call vote: Glover-Yes, Grund-Yes, Grondstra-Yes, Coughlan- Yes, Taylor- Yes, Torres- Yes, Facey- Yes, motion passed. (7-0) Х. Public Input II of II No public comment XI. Non-Public Session I of II Ms. Facey motioned to enter into non-public session RSA 91 A:3 II (a) and (c) at 8:44PM. Mr. Glover seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous, motion passed.

631 632 633	Mr. Grondstra called for a roll call vote: Glover-Yes, Grund-Yes, Grondstra- Yes, Coughlan- Yes, Taylor- Yes, Torres- Yes, Facey- Yes, motion passed. (7-0)
634	Other persons present during nonpublic session: Adam Steel, Superintendent and Mike Berry, Principal
635	rincipal
636	Description of mottors discussed and final desisions made, SUS Staffing
637 638	Description of matters discussed, and final decisions made: SHS Staffing
639	XII. Public Session
640	
641	Mr. Glover motioned to exit non-public session and return to public session at 9:08PM. Ms.
642	Facey seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous, motion passed.
643	Tucey seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous, motion passed.
644	Mr. Grondstra called for a roll call vote: Glover-Yes, Grund-Yes, Grondstra- Yes,
645	Coughlan- Yes, Taylor- Yes, Torres- Yes, Facey- Yes, motion passed. (7-0)
646	
647	Mr. Glover motioned to seal the minutes. Ms. Facey seconded the motion. Because it is
648	determined that divulgence of this information likely would affect adversely the reputation
649	of any person other than a member of this board until January 1, 2021. Motion did not
650	pass.
651	
652	Mr. Grondstra called a Roll Call Vote to seal minutes: Grondstra – No, Glover – Yes,
653	Coughlan – No, Facey – No, Grund – Yes, Taylor – No, Torres – No
654	
655 656	XIII. Non-Public Session II of II
657	Mr. Glover motioned to enter Non-Public Session RSA 91 A:3 II (c) at 9:08 PM. Ms. Grund
658	seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous, motion passed.
659	
660	Mr. Grondstra called for a roll call vote: Glover-Yes, Grund-Yes, Grondstra- Yes,
661	Coughlan- Yes, Taylor- Yes, Torres- Yes, Facey- Yes, motion passed. (7-0)
662	
663	Other persons present during nonpublic session: Adam Steel, Superintendent and Mike Berry,
664	Principal
665	
666	Description of matters discussed, and final decisions made: PPC Agreement
667	
668	XIV. Public Session
669	
670	Mr. Glover motioned to exit non-public session and return to public session at 9:41PM. Ms.
671	Facey seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous, motion passed.
672	
673	Mr. Grondstra called for a roll call vote: Glover-Yes, Grund-Yes, Grondstra- Yes,
674	Coughlan- Yes, Taylor- Yes, Torres- Yes, Facey- Yes, motion passed. (7-0)
675	

- Mr. Glover motioned to seal the minutes indefinitely. Mr. Coughlan seconded the motion. 676 677 Because it is determined that divulgence of this information likely would affect adversely the reputation of any person other than a member of this board until January 1, 2021. 678 679 Motion passed. 680 Mr. Grondstra called for a roll call vote: Glover-Yes, Grund-Yes, Grondstra-Yes, 681 Coughlan- Yes, Taylor- Yes, Torres- Yes, Facey- Yes, motion passed. (7-0) 682 683 684 XV. Meeting Adjourned 685 686 Ms. Facey motioned to adjourn the meeting at 9:42PM. Mr. Glover seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous, motion passed. 687 688 Mr. Grondstra called for a roll call vote: Glover-Yes, Grund-Yes, Grondstra-Yes, 689
- 690 Coughlan- Yes, Taylor- Yes, Torres- Yes, Facey- Yes, motion passed. (7-0)
- 691

Consent Agenda Item #3

SAU #39

Souhegan High School November Facilities Update Vendor Maintenance Completed

- Building Management System upgrades
- Domestic water backflow testing
- Repair of failed Auditorium fire curtain
- Received elevator inspection certificates
- Received boiler room inspection certificates
- Registered new truck and received plates
- Service call for broken hydraulic line on Annex trash compactor
- Service call for plumbing clog in C-wing
- Changed flushometer on kitchen toilet from 1.5 g to 3.5 g per flush
- Service call for Annex RTU's not functioning properly
- Registered Special Services vehicle
- Repaired hot water pump 1 valve leak
- Repair of the unit ventilators
- Weekly temporary custodial services
- Waste management services weekly schedule

SHS Facilities Staff Projects Completed

- Election setup and breakdown
- Filled in pothole on main drive near front field
- Installed chain and lock on septic cover on grounds
- Purchased and installed battery for John Deered Gator
- Implementation of Simple Green as a multi-purpose cleaner
- Landscaping of the grounds continues to be completed weekly
- Daily cleaning and disinfecting

Upcoming Work

- Main building and Annex building boiler cleaning
- Installation of furniture outlets
- Fire sprinkler system backflow testing
- Repair of Main Building exterior door closer and mullion
- Security upgrades approved from UFB

12/3/2020





Unlocked cover for septic tank

Inside unlocked septic tank



Locked cover for septic tank



Annex trash compactor hydraulic repair



New 3 way valve for unit ventilators



Unit ventilator repair



Hot water pump 1 leak repair



Simple Green used as a multi-purpose cleaner



PRICING PROPOSAL FOR SOUHEGAN HIGH SCHOOL

FieldTurf is pleased to offer to supply and install the following high performance artificial infilled grass surface.

Field Name	Existing Turf Field
Turf System	Field Turf System
Square Footage	85,000 Approximately
Field Markings	Existing lines and markings
Removal and Disposal	\$51,000 (.60 cents per square ft.)
Fine Grade Existing Base	\$14,450 (.17 cents per square ft.)
Turf and Turf Installation	\$403,750 (\$4.75 per square ft. includes logo)
Infill Re-use Credit	-\$21,250 (.25 Cents Per Square ft.)
Total Price without Re-use Credit	\$469,200
Total Price with Re-use Credit	\$448,050

BUDGET FOR 5 YEARS OUT:

The above budget is for a project that would be completed in the next 12 months. If this project were to happen in the next 5 years a budget for this project would be in the **\$500,000** - **\$550,000 range**.

The FieldTurf Quality Guarantee

To achieve unmatched quality and level of performance, we have invested heavily in modernizing our plants with the latest fiber manufacturing, coating and tufting technologies along with top manufacturing talent, and specialized installation equipment. Our dedicated CAD-based design department supports customization for each client, and our experts ensure timely delivery and installation on every project.



7445 Côte-de-Liesse Road Suite 200, Montreal, QC, Canada H4T 1G2 • Toll Free: 1-800-724-2969 • Website: http://www.fieldturf.com



The world leader in artificial turf innovation is ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 certified for its leadership in quality, environment and safety management systems. FieldTurf's Calhoun facility represents the only artificial turf manufacturing operation in North America to have received these ISO certifications.

FieldTurf has taken the necessary steps to ensure that your project will run smoothly and that the quality promised will be the quality delivered.

Price Includes:

- a) Removal/disposal of existing turf field;
- b) Re-use of existing infill (Voluntary Deduct)
- c) Installation of FieldTurf system
- d) An eight (8) year 3rd party pre-paid insured warranty on the FieldTurf artificial grass surface.

Price does not Include:

- a) Any costs associated with necessary changes relating to delineation of the field.
- b) The supply or installation of the field edging.
- c) The supply of manholes or clean-outs or grates, or supply of the manhole covers.
- d) Any alteration or deviation from specifications involving extra costs, which alteration or deviation will be provided only upon executed change orders, and will become an extra charge over and above the offered price.
- e) Site security.
- f) Small vehicle to tow FieldTurf maintenance equipment.
- g) All applicable taxes, bonding fees, prevailing wages, union labor or other labor law levies.

Please feel free to reach out with questions about our offer:

Andrew Dyjak Regional Vice President New England 860-333-7839 Andrew.Dyjak@fieldturf.com

Thank you again for your interest in FieldTurf, we look forward to working with you.



7445 Côte-de-Liesse Road Suite 200, Montreal, QC, Canada H4T 1G2 • Toll Free: 1-800-724-2969 • Website: http://www.fieldturf.com



Conditions

Notwithstanding any other document or agreement entered into by FieldTurf in connection with the supply and installation only of its product pursuant to the present bid proposal, the following shall apply:

- a) This bid proposal and its acceptance is subject to strikes, accidents, delays beyond our control and *force majeure*;
- b) Final payment shall be upon the substantial completion of FieldTurf's obligations;
- c) Accounts overdue beyond 30 days of invoice date will be charged at an interest rate of 10% per annum.
- d) FieldTurf requires a minimum of 21 days after receiving final approvals on shop drawings to manufacture, coordinate delivery and schedule arrival of installation crew. Under typical field size and scenario, FieldTurf further requires 28 days per field to install the Product subject to weather and *force majeure*.
- e) FieldTurf requires a suitable staging area. Staging area must be square footage of field x 0.12, have a minimum access of 15 feet wide by 15 feet high, and, no more than 100ft from the site. A 25 foot wide by 25 foot long hard or paved clean surface area located within 50 feet of the playing surface shall be provided for purposes of proper mixing of infill material. Access to any field will include suitable bridging over curbs from the staging area to permit suitable access to the field by low clearance vehicles.
- f) This proposal is based on a single mobilization. If the site is not ready and additional mobilizations are necessary, additional charges will apply.
- g) FieldTurf shall be accountable for its negligence but shall not be bound by any penalty clauses.
- FieldTurf shall be entitled to recover all costs and expenses, including attorney fees, associated with collection procedures in the event that FieldTurf pursues collection of payment of any past due invoice.
- i) All colors are to be chosen from FieldTurf's standard colors.



AMHERST, MONT VERNON, SOUHEGAN, and SAU39 POLICY Consent Agenda Item #4

DID – FIXED ASSETS & DURABLE GOODS INVENTORIES

To serve the functions of conservation and control, a running inventory of fixed assets which exceed \$10,000 in purchase price and with a useful service life in excess of 5 years (excluding software licenses) will be maintained by the Superintendent's office.

An inventory of durable goods for each school (and the SAU) will be maintained. Changes in durable goods inventory will be maintained on an ongoing basis and shared with the Superintendent's office. Inventories shall be reviewed periodically for accuracy. Discrepancies shall be investigated.

Adopted: May 23, 2019 (SAU #39)

Consent Agenda Item #5

Souhegan Cooperative School District

Report of Fund Balance as of 11/30/2020

		Month to Date		Year to Date		Adj for	
Expendable Trusts Funds:	Beginning Balance	Income	Disbursements	Income	Disbursements	Fair Mkt Value	Ending Balance
School Maintenance Fund - Expendable Trust	\$251,513	\$542		\$100,043			\$352,098
Unfunded Liabilities Fund- Expendable Trust	\$54,210	\$84		\$8			\$54,302
Students with Disabilities - Expendable Trust*	\$307,016	\$642		\$2,959		\$72,224	\$382,843
	\$659,728	\$1,267	\$0	\$103,010	\$0	\$72,224	\$789,243

*Includes adj to FMV

	Month to Date		Year to Date			
Beginning Balance	Income	Disbursements	Income	Disbursements	Er	nding Balance
\$37,951	\$8	\$0	\$21,619	\$0		\$59,578

March 13, 2001

Revolving Fund Turf Field

Article 5

ESTABLISH A SCHOOL DISTRICT TRUST FUND AND NAME AGENTS. Shall the school district vote to create an expendable trust fund under the provisions of RSA 198-20: c, to be known as the Souhegan Cooperative Fund for Educationally Handicapped Students, for the purpose of offsetting the cost of unpredictable special education obligations. Furthermore, to name the school board as agents to expend from this fund, and to raise and appropriate the sum of fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000) toward this purpose. The school board, by a vote of 6-0, and the

March 8, 2005 ARTICLE 3.

Shall the school district vote to create an expendable trust fund under the provisions of RSA 198:20-c to be known as the School Maintenance Fund, to be held by the Trustees of the Trust Funds of the Town of Amherst, for the purpose of repairing and maintaining the school facilities and equipment, and for capital improvements? Furthermore, to raise and appropriate the sum of one dollar (\$1) toward this purpose and authorize the use of that amount from the unreserved fund balance (no amount to be raised from taxation), and name the school board as agents to expend from this fund. The School Board and Finance Committee recommend this appropriation. Majority vote required to pass. The receipt and expenditure of these funds have no impact on the tax rate.

ATICLE 4. To see if the school district will vote to create an expendable trust fund under the provisions of RSA 196:20- c, to be known as the fund for unfunded liabilities for retiring employees, for the purpose of payment of retirement benefits currently accruing. Furthermore, to raise and appropriate \$25,000 foward this purpose and to name the school board as agents to expend from this fund. Majority ballot vote required to pass. The Souhegan Cooperative School Board unanimously recommends the passage of this article. The	mr.
and to name the school board as agents to expend from this fund. Majority ballot vote required to pass.	24
and to name the school board as agents to expend from this fund. Majority ballot vote required to pass.	9Y
The Souhegan Cooperative School Board unanimously recommends the passage of this article. The	\bigcirc
The Souhegan Cooperative School Board unanimously recommends the passage of this article. The	
Souhegan Advisory Finance Committee unanimously recommends the passage of this article. 134/	2.843
Souhegan Advisory Finance Committee unanimously recommends the passage of this article. /3//	10
<i>[</i> 53]	, /N

March 8, 2016

Article 3

Shall the Souhegan Cooperative School District establish a Recreation Revolving Fund under the provisions of RSA 35-B:2,II? The money received from fees and charges for recreation services and facilities in the District shall be allowed to accumulate from year to year, and shall not be considered part of the general unassigned fund balance. The treasurer shall have custody of all monies in the fund, and shall pay out the same only upon order of the School Board (no further legislative body approval is required). These funds may be expended only for the recreation purposes, including installation, replacement and maintenance of a synthetic turf field, stated in RSA 35-B and no expenditure shall be made in such a way as to require the expenditure of other funds that have not been appropriated for the turner. for that purpose. Majority vote required to pass.

The Souhegan Cooperative School Board unanimously recommends the passage of this article by a vote of 7 to 0. The Souhegan Cooperative School District Advisory Finance Committee unanimously recommends the passage of this article by a vote of 7 to 0. No Tax Impact.

Souhegan High School POS and Scheduling Timeline 2020-2021

Department Meetings - Nov. 4

- □ Review of current courses
- □ Teachers submit new course proposals
- Departments review and vet new courses
- Discussion regarding existing courses -Continuation/revisions

Coordinators Meetings - Dec. 9

- Coordinators review and vet new course proposals
- Coordinators submit all recommended new courses and changes to existing courses to Leadership

Leadership -Dec. 18

Review/discuss and make final determination on recommended new courses and changes to existing courses.

Dec. 17

• Coordinators submit all approved and finalized changes to Rhonda.

Jan. 7

Leadership does final review of POS

Tentative Dates

- □ Jan. 12 POS posted online
- Jan. 12 Teacher math/language recommendations to counselors
- □ Jan. 13 Course Selection presentation to Juniors
- □ Jan.13- 20 Online course selection
- □ Jan. 13- Post-Secondary counselor meetings with Juniors begin
- □ Jan.14 Junior College Parent Night
- Jan. 20 Course Selection presentation to Sophomores & Freshman
- □ Jan. 21 Parent Presentation
- □ Jan. 20-27 Online course selection
- □ Feb.1 Course selection meetings with Sophomores & Freshman begin
- □ Feb. 19 Initial course sign up data to leadership
- □ March 4 8th Grade Parent Night
- □ March 5 8th Grade class presentations
- □ March 5-12 Online course selection
- □ March 15 & 16 Meetings with 8th graders
- □ March 18 Final numbers to leadership

Dates to be announced

- Complete Master Schedule
- Distribute Teacher Assignments
- □ Adjustment to student schedules
- □ Distribute Teachers schedules
- □ Distribute tentative student schedules